MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF HARBOR COMMIS-SIONERS OF THE CITY OF LONG BEACH, HELD IN THE BOARD ROOM OF THE HARBOR DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATION BUILDING AT 925 HARBOR PLAZA, LONG BEACH, CALIFORNIA, ON MONDAY, AUGUST 15, 2005, AT 1 P.M.

Present:	Commissioners:	Walter,Cordero,Hankla,Topsy-Elvord
Absent:	. u	Hancock

Also present:

<b>R.</b> D.	Steinke	Executive Director
G.	Knatz	Managing Director
S. B.	Rubin	Managing Director
T.	Teofilo	Managing Director
G. T.	Hein	Executive Officer to the Board
A. J.	Moro	Assistant Chief Harbor Engineer
H. C.	Morris	Director of Communications
M. J.	Slavin	Chief Financial Officer
D. L.	Albrecht	Director of Information Management
R.	Rich	Director of Maintenance
R. G.	Kanter	Director of Planning
K. J.	McDermott	Director of Properties
О.	Covington	Chief Port Security Officer
D. B.	Snyder	Director of Trade & Maritime Services

- C. A. Kemp
- D. T. Holzhaus
- Principal Deputy City Attorney

**Director of Community Relations** 

PRESIDENT TOPSY-ELVORD PRESIDED AS CHAIRPERSON.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES.

Upon motion by Commissioner Hankla, seconded by Commissioner Cordero and unanimously carried, the minutes of the regular meeting of August 8, 2005, were declared read and approved as read.

CONSENT CALENDAR - ITEMS NOS. 1-6.

Item No. 6 was removed from Consent Calendar for discussion.

1. BANK OF AMERICA, N.A. - EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE ESTOPPEL, CONSENT AND AGREEMENT FOR ASSETS OF NEW NGC, INC. - DOCUMENT NO. HD-6957.

Communication from Kathryn McDermott, Director of Properties, dated August 9, 2005, recommending approval of an Estoppel, Consent and Agreement with Bank of America, N.A., for assets of New NGC, Inc., at 1850 Pier B Street, and authorize the

Executive Director to execute all related documents, was presented to the Board. The recommendation was approved by the Executive Director.

2. CITY OF LOS ANGELES/CITY OF LONG BEACH - EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE AMENDMENT TO MASTER COST SHARING AGREEMENT FOR A STUDY OF TRUCK AND RAIL ACTIVITY IN THE SAN PEDRO BAY PORTS AND A STUDY OF TRAFFIC AND TOLL REVENUE FOR THE TERMINAL ISLAND BRIDGES - DOCUMENT NO. HD-5849K.

Communication from D. A. Thiessen, Chief Harbor Engineer, dated August 10, 2005, requesting approval of an amendment to Master Cost Sharing Agreement with the City of Los Angeles for the Integrated Work Program and Toll Study, in the amount of \$100,000, was presented to the Board. The request was approved by the Executive Director.

3. PINNACLEONE, INC. - EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE CONTRACT FOR THE PIER E REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT - DOCUMENT NO. HD-6958.

Communication from D. A. Thiessen, Chief Harbor Engineer, dated August 3, 2005, recommending authorization of a Contract with PinnacleOne, Inc., for construction management services for the Pier E redevelopment project and miscellaneous on-call support services, in the amount of \$800,000, and for the period of June 1, 2005, through May 31, 2007, was presented to the Board. The recommendation was approved by the Executive Director.

4. LEVEL I HARBOR DEVELOPMENT PERMITS – RECEIVED AND FILED.

Communication from Robert Kanter, Director of Planning, dated August 9, 2005, requesting that the following Level I Harbor Development Permits be received and filed:

HDP	#05-029	THUMS Long Beach Company – Gas Compressor System Upgrades
HDP	#05-072	J. H. Baxter & Company – Building Demolition
HDP	#05-074	Long Beach Generation, LLC – Geotechnical Investigation

was presented to the Board. The request was approved by the Executive Director.

5. HARBOR REVENUE FUND – APPROVAL OF FUND TRANSFER JOURNALS AND AUTHORIZATION OF TRANSFER OF FUNDS.

Communication from Michael J. Slavin, Chief Financial Officer, dated August 10, 2005, submitting the following Fund Transfer Journals received from the Department of Financial Management:

AMOUNT	DESCRIPTION
115,670.50	Employee Benefits Fund – Pension obligation bonds for August 2005
156,303.25	General Fund – transfer of the August 2005 estimated City general administration costs
(4,359.00)	General Fund – monthly credit for prior year indirect cost adjustment
684,812.00	Fire Department – fire boats for August 2005 Fire Department – fire stations for August 2005
7,368.50	Fire Department – vessel patrol charges for August 2005
13,229.00	Information Services Bureau – data processing operations and maintenance for July 2005
18.00	Information Services Bureau – voice charges for June 2005
4,995.93	Information Services Bureau – wireless communications for July 2005. Includes charges for eight (8) new Motorola HT1250 hand held radios
1,060.17	Public Works Department – maintenance of streetlights for July 2005
8,049.83	Technical Systems – financial information system for August 2005
120.00	Water Department – temporary 2" fire hydrant meter #5584 for June & July 2005
7,011.48	Water Department – State of California/Department of Health Services Drinking Water Program from July to December 2004. System No. 1910065
54.00	Information Services Bureau – pager service charges for June 2005

19,500.00

Technology Services – publication for three issues of The Wave from July through September 2005

was presented to the Board. The Fund Transfer Journals were approved by the Executive Director.

Without objection the communications were received and filed and Items Nos. 1-5 were approved by unanimous consent. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:	Commrs:	Walter, Cordero, Hankla, Topsy-Elvord
NOES:	"	None
ABSENT:	a	Hancock

6. ANNUAL MEETINGS OF PORT AUTHORITY ASSOCIATIONS – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZED TO DESIGNATE DELEGATES AND ALTERNATES.

Communication from Gustav T. Hein, Executive Officer, dated August 9, 2005, recommending that the Executive Director be authorized to designate the delegates and alternates to the annual meetings of the American Association of Port Authorities (AAPA), California Association of Port Authorities (CAPA), and the biennial meetings of the International Association of Ports and Harbors (IAPH), was presented to the Board. The recommendation was approved by the Executive Director.

In response to a question by President Topsy-Elvord, Mr. Steinke clarified the process of designating the delegates and alternates.

Without objection the communication was received and filed and Item No. 6 was approved by unanimous consent. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:	Commrs:	Walter, Cordero, Hankla, Topsy-Elvord
NOES:	"	None
ABSENT:	"	Hancock

**REGULAR AGENDA.** 

7. BILTMORE METAL FABRICATORS, INC. – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE FIRST AMENDMENT TO REVOCABLE PERMIT FOR LAND LOCATED AT 1355 WEST 11<sup>TH</sup> STREET – DOCUMENT NO. HD-6937A – RESOLUTION NO. HD-2268 - ADOPTED.

Communication from Kathryn McDermott, Director of Properties, dated August 8, 2005, recommending approval of a First Amendment to Revocable Permit with Biltmore Metal Fabricators, Inc., for paved and fenced land located at 1355 West 11<sup>th</sup> Street, was presented to the Board together with the authorizing resolution therefore. The recommendation was approved by the Executive Director. Commissioner Hankla moved, seconded by Commissioner Walter that the communication be received and filed and that the resolution entitled "A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF LONG BEACH AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A FIRST AMENDMENT TO REVOCABLE PERMIT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LONG BEACH, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS, AND BILTMORE METAL FABRICATORS FOR THE USE OF CERTAIN PREMISES IN THE HARBOR DISTRICT, AND MAKING A DETERMINATION RELATING THERETO," be declared read and adopted as read. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:	Commrs:	Walter,Cordero,Hankla,Topsy-Elvord
NOES:	<b>41</b>	None
ABSENT:	**	Hancock

8. PETRO DIAMOND TERMINAL COMPANY - EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE A NEW PIPELINE LICENSE FOR AN EXISTING PIPELINE ON PIER B - RESOLUTION NO. HD-2269 - ADOPTED.

Communication from Kathryn McDermott, Director of Properties, dated August 8, 2005, recommending approval of a new Pipeline License for an existing pipeline on Pier B with Petro Diamond Terminal Company, was presented to the Board together with the authorizing resolution therefore. The recommendation was approved by the Executive Director.

Commissioner Hankla moved, seconded by Commissioner Walter that the communication be received and filed and that the resolution entitled "A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF LONG BEACH AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A PIPELINE LICENSE BETWEEN THE CITY OF LONG BEACH, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS, AND PETRO-DIAMOND TERMINAL COMPANY FOR THE USE OF CERTAIN PREMISES IN THE HARBOR DISTRICT, AND MAKING A DETERMINATION RELATING THERETO," be declared read and adopted as read. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:	Commrs:	Walter,Cordero,Hankla,Topsy-Elvord
NOES:	<b>55</b>	None
ABSENT:	"	Hancock

#### NEW BUSINESS.

Ms. Morris stated in late May the Commission had approved a sponsorship for the Sea Festival and she displayed the "Precious Cargo" tee shirt, with the Green Port logo printed on the back, and stated the tee shirts were handed out to participants at the recent sand castle building event, the novice dive meet, and the fly a kite event.

### CLOSED SESSION.

At 1:45 p.m., President Topsy-Elvord recessed the Board meeting to hold a closed session:

# **CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION**

Closed session pursuant to Section 54956.9(a) of the Government Code regarding Brutoco Engineering & Construction, etc., vs. City of Long Beach, etc., et al., Superior Court Case No. NC034400.

At 2:10 p.m., the meeting was again called to order by President Topsy-Elvord.

ADJOURNED.

At 2:11 p.m., Commissioner Cordero moved, seconded by Commissioner Walter that the meeting be adjourned sine die. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:	Commrs:	Walter,Cordero,Hankla,Topsy-Elvord
NOES:	14	None
ABSENT:	£6	Hancock

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF HARBOR COMMIS-SIONERS OF THE CITY OF LONG BEACH, HELD IN THE BOARD ROOM OF THE HARBOR DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATION BUILDING AT 925 HARBOR PLAZA, LONG BEACH, CALIFORNIA, ON MONDAY, AUGUST 22, 2005, AT 1 P.M.

Present: Absent:

Commissioners:

Hancock, Hankla, Topsy-Elvord Walter,Cordero\* (On Port Business)

Also present:

R. D.	Steinke	Executive Director
S. B.	Rubin	Managing Director
Т.	Teofilo	Managing Director
G. T.	Hein	Executive Officer to the Board
D. A.	Thiessen	Chief Harbor Engineer
T. K.	Whitesell	Director of Administration
H. C.	Morris	Director of Communications
M. J.	Slavin	Chief Financial Officer
D. L.	Albrecht	Director of Information Management
R.	Rich	Director of Maintenance
R. G.	Kanter	Director of Planning
K. J.	McDermott	Director of Properties
С.	Perrone	Director of Security
D. B.	Snyder	Director of Trade & Maritime Services
C <i>.</i> A.	Kemp	Director of Community Relations

D. T. Holzhaus Principal Deputy City Attorney

PRESIDENT TOPSY-ELVORD PRESIDED AS CHAIRPERSON.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES.

Upon motion by Commissioner Hankla, seconded by Commissioner Hancock and unanimously carried, the minutes of the regular meeting of August 15, 2005, were declared read and approved as read.

CONSENT CALENDAR - ITEMS NOS. 1-7.

Item No. 1 was removed from Consent Calendar for discussion.

KPFF ENGINEERS - EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 2. CONTRACT FOR MASTER PLANNING AND GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION FOR THE PROPOSED PIER A/EAST REDEVELOPMENT - CITY ATTORNEY REQUESTED TO PREPARE CONTRACT - DOCUMENT NO. HD-6959 - CWO NO. 1274, SUPPLEMENT NO. 1 - APPROVED.

Communication from D. A. Thiessen, Chief Harbor Engineer, by A. J. Moro, dated August 17, 2005, recommending authorization of a Contract with KPFF Engineers for master planning and geotechnical investigation for the proposed Pier A/East redevelopment project, in the amount of \$630,000, and approval of CWO No. 1274, Supplement No. 1, in the amount of \$965,000, was presented to the Board. The recommendation was approved by the Executive Director.

3. INTEGRATED DESIGN SERVICES, INC. - EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE CONTRACT FOR CONSULTING MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR THE PROPOSED NEW PORT HEADQUARTERS AND THE PIER G TERMINAL REDEVELOPMENT - DOCUMENT NO. HD-6960.

Communication from D. A. Thiessen, Chief Harbor Engineer, by A. J. Moro, dated August 17, 2005, recommending authorization of a Contract with Integrated Design Services, Inc., for consulting management services for the development of the proposed new Port headquarters and for the Pier G Terminal redevelopment, in the amount of \$800,000, a contract duration to February 28, 2007, was presented to the Board. The recommendation was approved by the Executive Director.

4. BEST ELECTRIC - ACCEPTANCE OF WORK UNDER SPECIFICATION NO. HD-S2226A.

Communication from D. A. Thiessen, Chief Harbor Engineer, by A. J. Moro, dated August 17, 2005, advising that Best Electric has satisfactorily completed, as of April 11, 2005, security lighting at various Port locations, as described in Specification No. HD-S2226A and recommending that said work be accepted as complete as of that date, was presented to the Board. The recommendation was approved by the Executive Director.

5. TIDELANDS OIL PRODUCTION COMPANY – PERMIT TO DRILL WATER INJECTION WELL – APPROVED.

Communication from Robert Kanter, Director of Planning, dated August 17, 2005, recommending approval of the application submitted by Tidelands Oil Production Company for a permit to drill water injection Well FX-107, was presented to the Board. The recommendation was approved by the Executive Director.

6. THUMS - PERMIT TO REDRILL OIL PRODUCTION WELL - APPROVED.

Communication from Robert Kanter, Director of Planning, dated August 17, 2005, recommending approval of the application submitted by THUMS for a permit to redrill oil production Well J-5101, was presented to the Board. The recommendation was approved by the Executive Director.

### 7. KATHERINE KARLA LUCERO – APPOINTMENT.

Communication from Toni K. Whitesell, Director of Administration, dated August 11, 2005, requesting approval of the appointment of Katherine Karla Lucero to the position of Secretary, at Range/Step 410/5, effective August 29, 2005, was presented to the Board. The request was approved by the Executive Director.

Commissioner Hankla moved, seconded by Commissioner Hancock that the communications be received and filed and that Items Nos. 2-7 be approved as recommended. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:	Commrs:	Hancock, Hankla, Topsy-Elvord
NOES:	"	None
ABSENT:	4	Walter,Cordero

1. SPECIFICATION NO. HD-S2170 - APPROVED AND NOTICE INVITING BIDS AUTHORIZED – WHARF AND BACKLANDS PROJECT ON PIER G.

Communication from D. A. Thiessen, Chief Harbor Engineer, by A. J. Moro, dated August 17, 2005, submitting Specification No. HD-S2170 for Pier G, Berth G232, wharf and backlands project and requesting authority to advertise for bids for said work, was presented to the Board. The request was approved by the Executive Director.

In response to a request by Commissioner Hancock, Mr. Thiessen reviewed the scope of work.

Commissioner Hancock moved, seconded by Commissioner Hankla that the communication be received and filed, that Specification No. HD-S2170 be approved, and that the Executive Director be authorized to advertise for bids therefore. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:	Commrs:	Hancock, Hankla, Topsy-Elvord
NOES:	"	None
ABSENT:	22	Walter,Cordero

**REGULAR AGENDA.** 

8. LBIW, INC. – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE SECOND AMENDMENT TO LEASE FOR PROPERTY – DOCUMENT NO. HD-4866B -RESOLUTION NO. HD-2270 - ADOPTED.

Communication from Kathryn McDermott, Director of Properties, dated August 15, 2005, recommending approval of the Second Amendment to lease with LBIW, Inc., for property located at 2100 West Anaheim Street, was presented to the Board together with the authorizing resolution therefore. The recommendation was approved by the Executive Director. Commissioner Hancock moved, seconded by Commissioner Hankla that the communication be received and filed and that the resolution entitled "A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF LONG BEACH AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A SECOND AMENDMENT TO LEASE BETWEEN THE CITY OF LONG BEACH, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS, AND LBIW, INC., (FORMERLY KNOW AS LONG BEACH IRON WORKS, INC.), FOR THE USE OF CERTAIN PREMISES IN THE HARBOR DISTRICT, AND MAKING A DETERMINATION RELATING THERETO," be declared read and adopted as read. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:	Commrs:	Hancock, Hankla, Topsy-Elvord
NOES:	"	None
ABSENT:	**	Walter,Cordero

9. CALIFORNIA SANDBLASTING & COATING, INC. – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE REVOCABLE PERMIT FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1700 WEST 9<sup>TH</sup> STREET – DOCUMENT NO. HD-6961 – RESOLUTION NO. HD-2271 - ADOPTED.

Communication from Kathryn McDermott, Director of Properties, dated August 16, 2005, recommending approval of a Revocable Permit with California Sandblasting & Coating, Inc., for the property located at 1700 West 9<sup>th</sup> Street, was presented to the Board together with the authorizing resolution therefore. The recommendation was approved by the Executive Director.

Commissioner Hankla moved, seconded by Commissioner Hancock that the communication be received and filed and that the resolution entitled "A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF LONG BEACH AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A REVOCABLE PERMIT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LONG BEACH, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS, AND CALIFORNIA SANDBLASTING & COATING, INC., FOR THE USE OF CERTAIN PREMISES IN THE HARBOR DISTRICT, AND MAKING A DETERMINATION RELATING THERETO," be declared read and adopted as read. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:	Commrs:	Hancock, Hankla, Topsy-Elvord
NOES:	66	None
ABSENT:	25	Walter,Cordero

10. MORTON INTERNATIONAL, INC. – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE FOR PROPERTY ON PIER F – FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE.

4

Communication from Kathryn McDermott, Director of Properties, dated August 15, 2005, recommending approval of the First Amendment to lease with Morton International, Inc., for property located on Pier F, was presented to the Board together with the authorizing ordinance therefore. The recommendation was approved by the Executive Director.

Commissioner Hancock moved, seconded by Commissioner Hankla that the communication be received and filed and that the ordinance entitled, "AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF LONG BEACH AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE BETWEEN THE CITY OF LONG BEACH, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS, AND MORTON INTERNATIONAL, INC., FOR THE USE OF CERTAIN PREMISES IN THE HARBOR DISTRICT, AND MAKING A DETERMINATION RELATING THERETO," be declared read for the first time and laid over for its second and final reading. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:	Commrs:	Hancock, Hankla, Topsy-Elvord
NOES:	£1.	None
ABSENT:	"	Walter,Cordero

11. METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZED TO APPROVE EASEMENT DEED FOR PROPERTY ALONG THE ALAMEDA CORRIDOR – FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE.

Communication from Kathryn McDermott, Director of Properties, dated August 17, 2005, recommending approval of an easement deed with the Metropolitan Water District for property along the Alameda Corridor, was presented to the Board together with the authorizing ordinance therefore. The recommendation was approved by the Executive Director.

Commissioner Hankla moved, seconded by Commissioner Hancock that the communication be received and filed and that the ordinance entitled, "AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF LONG BEACH AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE LONG BEACH HARBOR DEPARTMENT TO EXECUTE THE UTILITY EASEMENT DEED BETWEEN THE CITY OF LONG BEACH, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS, AND THE METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT, AND MAKING A DETERMINATION RELATING THERETO," be declared read for the first time and laid over for its second and final reading. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:	Commrs:	Hancock, Hankla, Topsy-Elvord
NOES:	11	None
ABSENT:	**	Walter,Cordero

12. CITY OF VERNON – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZED TO APPROVE EASEMENT DEED FOR PROPERTY ALONG THE ALAMEDA CORRIDOR – FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE.

Communication from Kathryn McDermott, Director of Properties, dated August 17, 2005, recommending approval of an easement deed with the City of Vernon for property along the Alameda Corridor, was presented to the Board together with the authorizing ordinance therefore. The recommendation was approved by the Executive Director.

Commissioner Hancock moved, seconded by Commissioner Hankla that the communication be received and filed and that the ordinance entitled, "AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF LONG BEACH AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE LONG BEACH HARBOR DEPARTMENT TO EXECUTE THE EASEMENT DEED BETWEEN THE CITY OF LONG BEACH, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS, AND THE CITY OF VERNON, AND MAKING A DETERMINATION RELATING THERETO," be declared read for the first time and laid over for its second and final reading. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:	Commrs:	Hancock, Hankla, Topsy-Elvord
NOES:	"	None
ABSENT:	11	Walter,Cordero

13. STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION -EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE FIRST AMENDMENT TO FREEWAY MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT – FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE.

Communication from D. A. Thiessen, Chief Harbor Engineer, by A. J. Moro, dated August 17, 2005, recommending approval of the First Amendment to Freeway Maintenance Agreement with State of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), was presented to the Board together with the authorizing ordinance therefore. The recommendation was approved by the Executive Director.

Commissioner Hancock moved, seconded by Commissioner Hankla that the communication be received and filed and that the ordinance entitled, "AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF LONG BEACH DIRECTING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A FIRST AMENDMENT TO FREEWAY MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LONG BEACH, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS, AND THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACTING BY AND THROUGH THE DEPARTMENT OF

TRANSPORTATION, AND MAKING A DETERMINATION RELATING THERETO," be declared read for the first time and laid over for its second and final reading. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:Commrs:Hancock,Hankla,Topsy-ElvordNOES:"NoneABSENT:"Walter,Cordero

CLOSED SESSION.

At 2:20 p.m., President Topsy-Elvord recessed the Board meeting to hold a closed session:

#### **CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION**

Closed session pursuant to Section 54956.9(a) of the Government Code regarding City of Long Beach, etc., vs. Pacific Maritime Services, Inc., etc., et al., Superior Court Case No. NC022395.

At 2:45 p.m., the meeting was again called to order by President Topsy-Elvord.

ADJOURNED.

At 2:46 p.m., Commissioner Hancock moved, seconded by Commissioner Hankla that the meeting be adjourned sine die. Carried by the following vote:

AYES:	Commrs:	Hancock,Hankla,Topsy-Elvord
NOES:	a	None
ABSENT:	"	Walter,Cordero

## CITY OF LONG BEACH DEPARTMENT OF PARKS, RECREATION AND MARINE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION MINUTES JULY 21, 2005

## I. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting of the Parks and Recreation Commission was called to order by Chris Kozaites, President, at 9:00 a.m., at the El Dorado Park West Community Center, in the Senior Center Library. Phil Hester, Director of Parks, Recreation and Marine, took roll call and confirmed a quorum.

- Present: Chris Kozaites, President Harry Saltzgaver, Vice President Bea Antenore Raymond Chavarria Simon George Drew Satariano
- Absent: Brett Waterfield (excused)
- Staff:Phil Hester, Director of Parks, Recreation and Marine<br/>Dennis Eschen, Manager, Planning and Development Bureau<br/>Thomas Shippey, Manager, Maintenance Operations Bureau<br/>Janet Day-Anselmo, Manager, Business Operations Bureau<br/>Diane Lewis, Manager, Community Enrichment Programs Bureau<br/>Steven Neal, Chief Ranger<br/>Chrissy Marshall, Manager, Community Recreation Programs<br/>Robin Black, Executive Secretary to the Director

Guests:Lionel Gotley<br/>Susan Mearns, Mearns Consulting Corp.<br/>Larry Ryan, RJM Design Group, Inc.<br/>Michael Amardo, Red Cross<br/>Martin Leyba, LB Soccer Club<br/>Bry Myown<br/>Carol McCafferty, Willmore City Resident<br/>Robert Lamond, Partners of Parks<br/>Kristen Autry, Save LBC Skyline<br/>Mike Fillipow, LB Poly Cross Country Coach<br/>Tarak A. Mohamed, property owner<br/>Amy Bodek, Manager of the Project Development Bureau<br/>Mona Maguire Deleon, LSA Associates

## II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – JUNE 16, 2005

# It was moved by Commissioner Satariano and seconded by Vice President Saltzgaver to approve the June 16, 2005 Parks and Recreation Commission minutes. The motion carried unanimously.

# III. SAMMY AWARD PRESENTATION – MARLA CAMERINO

Marla Camerino said that her children fought over Sammy so he stayed at her office and learned clerical duties. Ms. Camerino presented the Sammy Award to Lachonda Lard, who has inspired Marla and her children with her leadership at the park.

# IV. EMPLOYEE-OF-THE-MONTH PRESENTATION FOR JULY

President Kozaites stated that Vice President Saltzgaver would announce the Employee of the Month.

Vice President Saltzgaver announced Jan Shafer as Administrative Employee of the Month from the Community Enrichment Programs Bureau.

Ms. Ellen Calomiris stated that Jan is a can-do person at the Rancho Los Cerritos. Due to the short staffing, Ms. Shafer has been willing to step in and do anything that is necessary. Ms. Shafer has been the volunteer coordinator while coordinating a new special event focusing on 1940's history. Ms. Calomiris stated that Ms. Shafer has also filled in by giving tours for school children, as needed.

## V. GOLD MEDAL VIDEO

Mr. Hester stated that the Commissioners had questions about the Department's Gold Medal video that the Department has been asked to submit by the National Recreation and Park Association (NRPA). He said that the Gold Medal Award is given to the top park and recreation department in the nation and the Department is in the final four. Mr. Hester stated that the NRPA would make the decision in October.

Ms. Jane Grobaty played the Department's Gold Medal video that was submitted.

President Kozaites stated that the Sea Festival Update would be taken later on the agenda.

### VII. COMMISSION ACTION ITEMS

#### #05-0701

PERSONAL SERVICES/INSTRUCTION AGREEMENTS-MONTHLY APPROVAL

President Kozaites stated that there were none this month.

### #05-0702

REQUEST FROM THE LONG BEACH UNITED SOCCER CLUB FOR WAIVER OF FIELD USE AND CONCESSION PERMIT FEES FOR THE 3<sup>RD</sup> ANNUAL PYRAMID CUP SOCCER TOURNAMENT

Mr. Hester stated that the Commission has approved this tournament for the past four years. He said that in exchange for a waiver of fees, the soccer club provides support services for maintenance of some of the ballfields.

Mr. Martin Leyba, the President of Long Beach Soccer Club, introduced himself and said that they plan on making the donations as they have done every year and they would provide the requested information.

It was moved by Commissioner Chavarria and seconded by Vice President Saltzgaver to approve the request by the Long Beach United Soccer Club for the waiver of concessions and field permit fees for the fields the Sports Office is able to provide with the following stipulations:

 <u>That the Long Beach United Soccer Club provide to the City a</u> <u>complete accounting of the tournament expenses and revenues</u> <u>including a tournament schedule and listing of teams.</u> The motion carried unanimously.

#### #05-0703

WAIVER OF FACILITY USE PERMIT FEES FOR HUMAN SERVICES ASSOCIATION

Mr. Hester stated that he discussed the waiver of fees for Human Services Association (HSA) with the Commission at the last meeting. He said that the Volunteers of America (VOA) is not going to provide meal service to seniors in Long Beach any longer and that HSA was interested in providing that service. He said that they are looking to start the service on August 1 at the five senior centers and add service at Cesar E. Chavez Park on September 1. Mr. Hester stated that meals are served to approximately 135,000 seniors and 62,000 meals are served to homebound seniors.

Commissioner Antenore asked where the meals would come from. Ms. Chrissy Marshall responded that this organization is different from VOA because they have a catering service that will bring in the food. She said that HSA has had such short notice, but they are looking for a catering service to provide the meals from Long Beach.

> Commissioner Satariano asked if there were any other organizations willing to step up and undertake this. Ms. Marshall stated that this was coordinated by the Area Agency on Aging (AAA) and HSA was the organization that they came up with.

> Commissioner Chavarria asked about the track record of Human Services Association. Ms. Marshall responded that AAA considered that when they recommended HSA. She said that HSA has a really good record and has been providing services to surrounding cities.

> Ms. Marshall said that staff has met with HSA staff and they are very professional and eager to take on the City of Long Beach. She said that their willingness is outstanding and they are taking on the existing VOA site staff to maintain the consistency of service, which is important to the seniors.

Vice President Saltzgaver said that this is a contract with the County to provide meals for seniors and the City is providing the facilities. He said that the Department did this for VOA because it provides a critical service in the city for a large number of seniors and this is the Parks and Recreation Commission's single largest fee waiver.

Commissioner Antenore asked if they would be continuing to provide the Cambodian meals. Ms. Marshall responded yes, they would continue to provide those.

It was moved by Vice President Saltzgaver and seconded by Commissioner Satariano to authorize a fee waiver for the period of August 1, 2005 to June 30, 2006, to Human Services Association for use of park facilities for the organization's congregate meal service to seniors. The motion carried unanimously.

President Kozaites stated that the Sea Festival Update would be taken at this time.

## VI. <u>SEA FESTIVAL UPDATE – CHRIS POOK</u>

Mr. Chris Pook stated that he would like to give a quick update on the Sea Festival to the Commission. He said that they have completed the first three weeks of Sea Festival and it has met what their expectations were. The ski race this year had more television publicity than ever before. There is a huge amount of opportunity in that area. Boat owners were very cooperative and agreed that media staff could ride on their boats to Avalon. This has potential for national sports show coverage. This was the first year of enticing the Trans Pac boats to Long Beach and it is the 100th anniversary of their first race. They run every other year. They discovered that they never had a home port to leave from to sail to Honolulu. Rainbow Harbor was transformed into a home port for this year's race and housed 50 percent of the 76 entries that participated. Mr. Pook mentioned that he couldn't say enough about the Marine Bureau and the effort they went to in order to make Trans Pac work. The Mayor's Cup is another new event this year that had six all-female teams for the first time. It was the first time that female match racing in big boats has taken place in the Western United States and it was a great success. He said that St. Mary Medical Center was a terrific sponsor for that as was the Port of Long Beach for the home port of Trans Pac.

Going forward, there are numerous Sea Festival events from the sand castle building to the sabot racing to the tiki festival to the dragon boats to kite boarding, which is a new event this year. The Press Telegram has agreed to do a special section at the beginning of August featuring all the Sea Festival events.

Mr. Pook said that we have to work on the community to make sure they understand about Sea Festival so they can participate, but that would take time.

He said that the Grand Prix developed into the finest example of a public/private partnership that any city in the country has. He sees the Sea Festival Association, which is a non-profit, as having the same potential. Mr. Pook said that working with staff, particularly Phil Hester, the Director, was a pleasure.

Commissioner Chavarria showed the Sea Festival poster. He said that there are 32 events and a lot of them are free. He stated that he was impressed with all the events and with Commissioner Satariano, who is the President of the Sea Festival Association, and who is doing a great job.

Vice President Saltzgaver asked if the organization was still floating in terms of finances. Mr. Pook responded that they have been very fortunate to have sponsorship from St. Mary Medical Center, the Port of Long Beach, the Department of Energy, and from City Light and Power and that is helping them considerably. Their best goal this year is to break even. He stated that like any business, it would take three to five years to build this business, but they intend to build it solidly.

President Kozaites thanked Mr. Pook for his update.

# VIII. <u>COMMITTEE STATUS REPORTS</u>

- A. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE President Kozaites, Chair
  - 1. COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

President Kozaites stated that the Executive Committee met and discussed the committee assignments and the draft is in the packet.

Commissioner Chavarria mentioned that it was probably a mistake, but he is on four committees. He stated that he also wanted to serve on the new Special Events and Recreation Committee. Commissioner Chavarria also requested that a listing of the time and dates of all the committee meetings be sent to the Commissioners. President Kozaites responded that Raymond Chavarria should not be on the City Schools/Joint Committee, it should be Brett Waterfield.

Vice President Saltzgaver said they need to discuss the formation of a new committee. It seems that this Commission continues to have more and more to do and it is important to get as much done before the full Commission meeting as they can. There is a strong need with special events citywide, for example last month's Sports Illustrated event, and they need to pay more attention to events and how they dovetail into recreation. It is important to form a new Special Events and Recreation Committee, which gives the Commission seven committees. He said that it would give them the ability to focus on specific issues in these committees and would allow them to get the job done in an efficient way.

## It was moved by Vice President Saltzgaver and moved by Commissioner Chavarria to create the Special Events and Recreation Committee. The motion carried unanimously.

President Kozaites selected Commissioner Drew Satariano as chair of the Committee and said that Commissioner Chavarria already volunteered to serve on the Committee. He asked for a third member for the Committee. Mr. Hester stated that the staff members would be someone from recreation, such as Chrissy Marshall, and Dave Ashman. Vice President Saltzgaver volunteered to serve on the Committee.

Vice President Saltzgaver asked that staff come back with the Committee duties and responsibilities.

B. FINANCE AND APPEALS COMMITTEE Commissioner Satariano, Chair

Commissioner Satariano stated that the budget numbers were included in the packet. He said that we are 75 percent through the fiscal year. The Department will be comin in under budget.

C. PARK SAFETY COMMITTEE Vacant, Chair

> Commissioner Antenore stated that the Committee did not meet and the report was included in the packet.

> Commissioner Chavarria stated that he heard that with the budget cuts, the park rangers would be limited to El Dorado Park only.

Mr. Hester responded that the Department's original budget proposal was to pull the park rangers back to work in El Dorado Park only, because of proposed budget reductions for fiscal year 2006. He said that the Department had a

budget hearing with the City Manager, who was concerned about doing that and he asked the Department to come back with a new plan to keep park rangers citywide and still come up with a way to save money while doing that. The Chief Ranger and Diane Lewis have been working very hard to come up with a plan. Mr. Hester said that out of this process, we may lose a couple of park rangers. He said that we have developed a citywide schedule, but it is very thin and we are concerned about officer safety and want to make sure we schedule the park rangers when the parks are busiest.

D. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY AND CUSTOMER SATISFACTION COMMITTEE Commissioner Chavarria, Chair

Commissioner Chavarria stated that there was no Committee meeting and referred the Commissioners to page 5 of the Director's Report.

E. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS COMMITTEE Vice President Saltzgaver, Chair

> Vice President Saltzgaver stated that the Committee met two weeks ago and went over the final EIR and the land use plan for the Sports Park. He said that the quarterly report was also included in the packet. He stated that on Tuesday night the City Council approved \$2 million in Redevelopment Agency funds to build a new community center at Admiral Kidd Park and to build a new minipark at Plymouth and Elm Ave. He thanked the North Redevelopment PAC for their efforts in getting this approved.

F. CITY SCHOOLS/JOINT COMMITTEE Commissioner Antenore, Chair

Commissioner Antenore stated that the Committee did not meet this month.

# IX. DIRECTOR'S REPORT TO COMMISSION

## A. DIRECTOR'S MONTHLY REPORT – JUNE 2005

Commissioner Chavarria stated that on page 8, a new supervisor Zoot Velasco was mentioned.

Ms. Lewis mentioned that Mr. Velasco would be attending the Parks and Recreation Commission meeting in August to be introduced to the Commission.

### X. <u>CORRESPONDENCE</u>

President Kozaites stated that there was no correspondence.

### XI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

# A. RESOLUTIONS FOR ESTABLISHING FEES FOR PARKS AND RECREATION SERVICES

Mr. Hester stated that that a month or so ago, these recommendations were brought before the Parks and Recreation Commission for approval. They were then to be sent to the City Manager's office to be incorporated as part of the budget discussion. He said that the Department received notification from the City Attorney's office that a resolution needed to be passed for the fees. Mr. Hester stated that this document that is before the Commission has been approved previously and we are requesting that this be handled as a resolution.

Ms. Donna Gwin stated that the government code requires that all fee increases be approved by Resolution or Ordinance, so this is just clearing it up.

It was moved by Commissioner Satariano and seconded by Commissioner Antenore to adopt a resolution for fees and charges relating to adult sports, athletic permits, community center facilities, and El Dorado East vehicle entry fees, effective August 1, 2005. In addition, adopted as resolution for fees and charges relating to the Adaptive ARISE program, Blair Field, contract classes, day camps, El Dorado East Regional picnic and camping, Nature Center tours and classes, filming location fees, and community pool lessons and rentals, effective October 1, 2005. The motion carried unanimously.

President Kozaites took a role call for the resolution: Commissioner Chavarria – Aye, Commissioner Satariano – Aye, Commissioner George – Aye, Commissioner Antenore – Aye, Vice President Saltzgaver – Aye, and President Kozaites – Aye. Commissioner Waterfield was absent.

### XII. <u>NEW BUSINESS</u>

### A. CHANGES TO THE FEE WAIVER POLICY

Mr. Hester stated that this is an item that staff has been working on for some time with Commissioner Satariano. This would become effective October 1, 2005, and clarifies how the Department handles fee waivers.

## It was moved by Commissioner Chavarria and seconded by Commissioner George to adopt the changes to the Parks and Recreation Commission Fee Waiver Policy effective October 1, 2005. The motion carried unanimously.

## B. LONG BEACH SPORTS PARK AND YOUTH GOLF LEARNING CENTER

Mr. Hester stated that Mr. Dennis Eschen would give the history and the location of the project and then Ms. Amy Bodek would lead the staff presentation and answer any questions.

Mr. Eschen stated that what is before the Commission are two of the more important responsibilities and duties under the City Charter, which are to recommend the acquisition of land for recreational purposes and to advise on the improvement of parks and public recreational land. We will be presenting the EIR as background information and to keep the Commission up to date on that process. He mentioned that the Parks and Recreation Commission has already taken action and made recommendations to the Planning Commission on the EIR.

Mr. Eschen said that the first of the two actions before the Commission is the acquisition of property for recreational purposes: which is a dedication of City property for recreational purposes, an acquisition of property, and an exchange of property. He said that the property is located on Spring Street between Orange and California Avenues, north of the Municipal Cemetery, which is in the western half of the city that is an underserved area based upon the analysis for both the Open Space and Recreation Element and for the Department's Strategic Plan. The Citywide Strategic Plan and the Open Space and Recreation Element recommend that the acquisition of parkland occur in the underserved area, and this satisfies the goals of both of those documents. Both of those documents also recommend that the City look at under-use of City property for recreational purposes. Most of the land is City-owned land that primarily has been used for disposal of excess soil from Water Department underground pipeline construction and gualifies for the conversion of an underused City-owned property into an important park open space.

Mr. Eschen stated that the second part of the responsibility is on the recreational improvements to the site. This is probably the most critical and controversial issue, which is the proper recreational use for the site. The Department is recommending the sports complex; however, both the Open Space and Recreation Element and the Strategic Plan point out the need for passive open space as well. However, as is detailed in the Department Strategic Plan, there is a great need for active recreational open space, such as sports fields, game courts, and other facilities. The Open Space and Recreation Element specifically recommends the concentration of sports fields and an intensively managed sports facility. There is no other viable location that has been pointed out where an intensive sports facility can be located

within the city. In that case, we feel that the proposed sports field use of this site is the appropriate recreational use of the site. We also point out the importance of providing after school youth activities, such as is recommended by the golf learning center, and also by concentrating adult sports off of community parks into one central location. He stated that we believe that the active recreation satisfies all the policy goals of the City better than any other recreational use of the site.

Mr. Eschen stated that in terms of the Sports Park itself, it has a long history beginning in 1984, when the need was first identified and a recommended location was identified next to the Nature Center in El Dorado Park, next to the tree farm. Later, that was eliminated from recommendation because of possible impacts on the Nature Center with noise and light. A citywide task force was created to select another location. That task force considered ten different citywide sites and recommended a location in El Dorado Regional Park in Area III in the northwest corner. This was an area that had never been fully developed as part of the park. After several years of review, that site was also abandoned because of environmental impacts and a community opposition. Finally, this site has been selected and has been studied extensively.

Ms. Amy Bodek introduced herself as Manager of the Project Development Bureau in the Community Development Department, and stated that she is here to talk about the project which the Department of Parks, Recreation and Marine has been charged with. Ms. Bodek introduced Mona Deleon, from LSA Associations, as well as Larry Ryan, with RJM Associations, which is a landscape architect firm. She also introduced Dr. Mearns, the toxicologist, and Nichole Debouis, with LSA Associates, the EIR consulting firm. She introduced a team from the Planning and Building Department: with the new Director of Planning and Building, Suzanne Frick; with Angela Reynolds, the Environmental Officer; and Jeff Winklepleck, the Project Planner for the project from the Planning Bureau side. Ms. Bodek also introduced Ray Pok, representing the City Council District that the project is in.

Ms. Bodek stated that the property is geographically in the heart of the city and is easily accessible from all areas of the city. She said that the property is bounded on the north by Spring Street, on the east by Orange Avenue, on the west by California Avenue, and to the south by the City Municipal Cemetery and the privately owned Sunnyside Cemetery. The site itself is about a 56-acre site. The majority of the site is City-owned. She stated that Mr. Eschen talked about the history of the project, which really did start in 1984. She said that she is going to talk about the history of the project as it relates to this site only. In 1996, the City Council directed staff to no longer look at El Dorado Park as a potential site for the Sports Park, but to actually look at this site. She said that they did undertake a feasibility study to determine if it was going to be feasible and then they started the preparation of an EIR. That EIR never came to fruition because it was deemed as inadequate. They had to restart the entire EIR process over again in 2002, with the firm LSA Associates. A good portion

of 2002 and 2003 was spent investigating this site to determine whether or not we could actually build this facility on this site. We then released the draft EIR for public comment in December of 2004. It circulated for 60 days, which is longer than the statutory requirement of 45 days. The public comment period closed in February of 2005. We are working through that process and today is really a milestone event in the overall approval of the process, because we will be starting the public hearing process with the Planning Commission next month. So, the Parks and Recreation Commission's action today is the first step in a several month process of getting this project before the City Council.

Ms. Bodek stated that she wanted to point out a couple of key objectives in developing this site in particular, as it relates to this project. The first objective of the project was to develop a substantial, operationally self-sufficient sports park to meet what the Parks, Recreation and Marine Department has documented as the need for adult and youth leagues for opportunities. In addition, we are using this opportunity to redevelop a blighted site that has multiple development constraints, with a use that is economically viable and very attractive and meets the needs of the community.

Ms. Bodek stated that this is a pay-for-play project. That means that if you participate in a league, you would pay a fee through that league to participate and play specifically at this facility. She stated that Larry Ryan would go into greater detail on the amenities. Ms. Bodek stated that she was going to talk about some of the challenges of why this site is actually very well suited for this park project. There are many development constraints related to this site that has actually rendered it substantially useless for traditional development. These site constraints include obsolete uses, such as a defunct gas processing plant, an earthquake fault that runs through the middle of the site, and active oil exploration activities that must continue on the site. We have fee ownership issues and requirements to allow access to those oil operations. There are also third party underground pipelines and a requirement by the county to retain a substantial amount of water in flood conditions, as part of a county-wide storm drain system. She showed a picture of an existing gas processing plant at the corner of Spring St. and Orange Ave. She stated that this property is not yet owned by the City. Of the 56-acre site, the City does not own 8 acres. She showed a picture of an existing tank farm not controlled by the City. This has been the site of illegal dumping and debris because it is an unsecured site and has not been redeveloped. She showed a picture of the existing detention basin, which is owned by the County of Los Angeles, and this function must remain on the site, although it would be in a different format.

Ms. Bodek stated that she would like to talk about the project benefits. The City owns 48 of the 56 acres, so there is a substantial investment in the site already. We will create over 50 acres of new parkland in the city. It will convert a site that is considered a Brownfields site to an active sports facility. There are other uses that were attempted to be developed on this site but because of the development constraints, can not be developed. So this is a benefit for using this site as an open space resource. This site is centrally located to all parts of Long Beach. It frees up local park fields for use by kids and gives a place for adults to play. We think that this facility will also attract some special events that will give this facility a reputation in the region.

Mr. Larry Ryan said that it is his pleasure to be here today because it has been a long evolution for this project. They have looked at a number of alternatives and would show the culmination of that planning effort. He presented a plan to preserve 15 operating oil wells with their access maintained. He said that he would walk through the master plan area by area. He said that this site would have a controlled access, much like an amusement park, and have one access point. He showed this area on the map.

Vice President Saltzgaver asked for the square footage of the skate park. Mr. Ryan responded that it would be approximately 23,000 square feet.

Mr. Eschen stated that for scale on the skate park, the Houghton Skate Park is about 15,000 square feet, so this would be a good deal larger than the Houghton Skate Park.

Mr. Ryan described that the field layout orients around a central concession building, which is elevated. He showed the western quadrant with tot lot areas, volleyball courts, and two large arena enclosures or covered areas that could be used for a variety of recreational amenities. Mr. Ryan then showed the lower elevation and the well heads, support areas, and access for the wells. He showed the outfall for a large storm drain facility, where the soccer field area is located and where the water would be retained during a heavy storm flow. He then showed the area for the golf training facility with the administration building and indoor training facility.

Ms. Mona Maguire Deleon introduced herself as a certified planner with LSA Associates, and stated that they were responsible for preparing the Environmental Impact Report for this project. She stated that they are in the process of preparing the final EIR document that would go before the Planning Commission. She said that she would show the presentation that they would be showing to the Planning Commission. Ms. Deleon stated that the EIR was prepared under the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act and it addresses all the topics. She mentioned that there was a concern about wetlands. The County of Los Angeles has a detention basin on the project site, but it has not been very well maintained and so the flow of water has been impeded. There is standing water and wetlands were created due to that lack of maintenance. The wetlands were evaluated. Because the project involves quite a bit of grading in order to accommodate all the facilities that Mr. Ryan described, the wetlands would not be maintained in the future condition of the site. That is an impact. They would work with the biologist and look at the possibility for mitigation. Since there wasn't a good opportunity to mitigate onsite, they looked at opportunities off site and worked closely with Mr. Dennis

Eschen and identified an off-site location along the San Gabriel River where we can create wetlands that is part of a larger conservation area.

Ms. Deleon stated that another biological impact that they looked at was an impact to a special species of concern. When we had our ornithologist on site evaluating wild life in general, and especially the birds, they did find a pair of nesting Loggerhead Shrike. They are not an endangered species, but they are identified as a species of concern. In the coastal region of Southern California their population is declining. In the inland areas they are still thriving. This is another impact, since they are grading the site. They went back to the biologist, and they recommended creating an area where these birds could possibly nest. They pointed out that because the cemetery is located adjacent to the site and there are mature trees there, the trees provide an environment where the birds can do foraging. The Shrike is a butcher bird; they find their prey and often times impale them on a fence and go back to them later. The cemetery is not providing the kinds of shrubs that these birds would use for nesting. They worked with Larry Ryan and created an area in the very southern boundary of the site where they would do a natural planting of shrubs to create that opportunity. We can't guarantee that the Shrike would actually stay on the site. In that case, they are saying that the impact still is significant even after Those impacts that would stay significant even after mitigation mitigation. would be a special concern of the Planning Commission when they are reviewing the EIR and making their decision.

Ms. Deleon stated that they also had to look at the cultural resources and looked at the historical resources. The compressor building that was talked about earlier is actually a historic building. There is another historic building just off the site, an office building at 2901 Orange Ave., and it is used by Signal Hill Petroleum as their office building. Since the compressor building would be demolished, that is a significant effect on a historic resource. It is considered historic because it is contributing to our understanding of the development of oil fields in Southern California and that particular segment of our history. Since the compressor building will be demolished, there will be mitigation. They will be going through and photographing the building and using an archival system, the plans will be researched and preserved and a record of the building will be preserved. There is mitigation that will be performed so that the information will not be lost. But the building will be demolished, so that is considered a significant impact.

Ms. Deleon stated that they are charged with looking at public services and utilities. In Los Angeles County there is a strong demand for future landfill space. The County is looking for space outside of the county to provide for long-term need and demand. This project will be contributing to the solid waste demand. The plans are moving forward, but those other landfills that are targeted for the future have not yet gone through their permitting process, so they are not officially available. There is a cumulative consideration for landfill space. This is considered a significant effect.

Ms. Deleon said that as far as the air quality, they would look at two things. First, there are the construction impacts. They will be moving about 600 cubic yards of dirt, which is quite a bit of grading activity. The movement of the earth itself creates fugitive dust and particulate matter, and having the construction equipment on the site will create its own emissions and can contribute to violations of the NOx thresholds. Watering can be done to control the dust, but that are not enough to bring those impacts below thresholds of significance, for short term construction.

Ms. Deleon stated that there would also be some long-term impacts to air quality, and those are primarily as a result of vehicular traffic, issues from the vehicles that would be coming to and from the park, particularly on the weekends. A good study of the traffic impacts and a good identification of mitigation measures would reduce those impacts. In some cases, it is a new signal at the entranceway to the proposed Sports Park, a change in the signal timing, restriping of lanes, all of these measures have been identified to address the traffic impacts. In this case, the City of Long Beach is actually working with two partner agencies: the surrounding streets are in the City of Signal Hill, and the 405 Freeway ramps are within the jurisdiction of CalTrans. The City's intent and plan and all the efforts have been very cooperative with those agencies to make sure that the mitigation can be implemented. Since those mitigation measures are not all within the control of the City, it involves actions with other agencies as well, the EIR concludes that it is possible the City won't be able to complete all those mitigation measures and therefore, it is possible that the impacts could be significant. The intent is to mitigate and cooperate with those agencies.

Ms. Deleon stated that the draft EIR has been prepared and now we are completing the record for the Planning Commission's consideration, beginning next month. She also wanted to address the human health risk assessment that was prepared for the project. The site has a history of a lot of different uses, and many people would characterize it as blighted. The City wanted to make sure that it did a very complete and thorough investigation of the site and prepared a human health risk assessment to determine if there would be any risk to the end users of the Sports Park. As part of that effort, there was an extensive soil investigation, over 300 samples were collected and analyzed. They were collected under the provisions of the sampling and analysis plan that was approved by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). They were analyzed both by a contract lab that our team used as well as a split sample quality control checked by a USEPA contract lab. All of the items identified were assessed in the health risk assessment. The health risk assessment was prepared and it is currently being reviewed by the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board and the Office of Environmental Health Hazardous Assessment. There are some mitigation measures identified in the EIR, for example the preparation of a soil management plan, as part of all the earth movement. We do expect that there would be petroleum-impacted soils, which would be addressed through a soils management plan. If we were to tell

you where the methane emissions may or may not be on the site, it wouldn't necessarily tell you where the methane emissions would be after all the grading activity. The EIR requires that there is methane monitoring during and after the rough grading so that we can identify if there are any methane emissions on the site, given its geologic history as an oil property.

Ms. Deleon stated that after all the soil testing, analysis, and health risk assessment that was applied, it was determined that the constituents that are present in the soil are, at present, at levels that are below thresholds that pose a risk to human health. The site, overall, is not presenting a risk to human health. Since there is not a risk to human health, it is not necessary to do remediation. There is no need to export soil to a landfill or anything like that.

Ms. Bodek stated that she wanted to talk about the concurrent activities that they would have to go through, which may or may not be within the Commission's purview, but is very important to understanding the project as a whole. That is one of the reasons why the information was presented to the Commission on the EIR, though the Commission doesn't technically have a responsibility to approve or certify the EIR, it is important to understand all the components of the project. There is third-party assembly that needs to occur. We don't own all the sites and there is one additional parcel that we must acquire. We are currently in negotiations for that acquisition and have the money already in the bank for that acquisition, from a 1992 park bond through the County. We also need to move forward with the general plan and some rezoning issues. Those will be the purview of the Planning Commission and the City Council. We need to determine the operational efficiencies of the project. Who is going to operate the project? Is it going to be a private operator or a City operator or a joint partnership? The Parks, Recreation and Marine Department clearly had successful experience with private concessionaires, such as American Golf, so we are exploring those relationships. But, at this point in time, a decision has not been made as to whether or not a private operator would operate it or the City would operate it. Those are issues that will be discussed later. Our focus right now is really on the project itself overall and getting that project through the approval process. Lastly, is financing. This is a very expensive project. We do have a lot of fingers in the pie and we are chipping away at how best to finance this project. We certainly would not be presenting this project to you today if we didn't think that it was feasible.

Ms. Bodek showed the corner property, which is privately owned property. This is where the gas processing plant is located and also where the historic office building at 2901 Orange is located. We are already in negotiations for the acquisition of that property. She showed a parcel of the site that would not be needed for the project and stated what we are considering doing is a land-swap or a trade for the unneeded parcel. That would help tremendously with the amount of money that would be needed to acquire the property. This could be put to a commercial use and would be owned privately and would not be part of the park project. The Planning Commission would be having a study session

> next month on this project and what they will be asked to do, possibly in October, is to consider rezoning and general plan amendment and other entitlements for the project. We are proposing to rezone the property in this manner until we finalize the acquisition of the private property. We cannot go in today and rezone the private property, since it is not within our control. It is very important for us to set the stage on getting the main portion of the property zoned as park use and then chipping away and coming back in the future months and rezoning the rest of the property as end zoning designation, once we finish the acquisition of the site. This project is expensive, but we do we have methodology in place and we believe that we are chipping away at this total cost. It is going to be a substantial grading and soil management effort. We have to do some modifications to the existing oil fields. Mr. Rvan mentioned that there would be 15 to 17 active oil wells on the site. We have to do some abandonment of existing wells, relocation of oil pipelines, and other oil field modifications. Then we have to do construction of the park improvements. There are going to be substantial street improvements that are going to be required as part of the EIR, as well as part of the project. We will also have to do completion of the site assembly.

> Ms. Bodek stated that we already have money for the completion of the site assembly. We are very aggressively pursuing federal legislative funds for the street improvements, as well as the construction of the park improvements. The City's Department of Oil Properties has started a reserve fund, because they receive revenues from the oil operations off this site. They have started a reserve fund to help pay for these oil field modifications. That leaves us with finding some money for the soil management and the grading activities. When you look at this \$30 to \$40 million project it does certainly look substantial, but we believe that we have the ability to chip away at those costs and really put together a financing plan for the City Council's ultimate approval that will show how this project can proceed.

> Ms. Bodek stated that the next steps in the approval process would be the Planning Commission hosting a public study session on August 18. We will then be having a scheduled public hearing with the Planning Commission, tentatively set for October 6. We will then follow up with a City Council public hearing either in November or December this year. The goal would be to get through this approval process by the end of this year, so that we can do the project implementation in 2006 and 2007. This concludes the public presentation from staff and from the consultant team and they are available for guestions and comments.

It was moved by Vice President Saltzgaver and seconded by Commissioner Chavarria to approve the staff recommendations individually for specific action, the first part being the land acquisition and the second part being the land use. President Kozaites asked if there was anyone from the audience who wished to speak on this item. There were four.

Ms. Carol McCafferty said that she was with the Wilmore City District and, about 20 years ago, she indulged herself in buying a Wilmore District house. Before that she had lived in Lakewood Village. She really liked her neighborhood but she wasn't territorial. She has become territorial since she moved to the western half of the city, or the part of the city that is west of Redondo. One of these issues is the fact that the east side has the parks and the west side has the kids. On the whole, the west side houses don't have backyards and so park space is highly appreciated in our neighborhoods. We have been aware of that problem before we moved there. The population will be growing. All this time we didn't know that the City had 50 acres that was available for parks. It turned out that El Dorado Park Estates did not want the project over there, so the project came west. We were never asked. We have a really strong network of neighborhood associations and on most issues, Dennis Eschen and staff are really good about communication.

Commissioner Antenore stated that wasn't true. We had a lot of public meetings about this project.

Ms. McCafferty responded that she hadn't heard about a single one of them and she hasn't found activists on that side of town who know what it is about. I don't think that fancy baseball is needed on the western part of town; I think it is an eastern sport. People on my side of town, on the whole, don't play golf. I am not sure that they want to pay to come into a facility, pay to eat there, and pay to play. They are kind of low income. The softball diamond was recently removed from Drake Park, which facilitates the soccer field that is there and is in pretty steady use. No one has complained. Recently, I found out that this area is a lot more historically significant than people are saying. The marshland that is there has been known as the city water lands since the turn of the 20<sup>th</sup> century. People are finding references to the Jergen's Trust Oil lease on the city water lands and that the general area there was the source of the first water for the city. We believe the Indians utilized the stream that went through there. So it is really important. The wetlands have been there forever. There is wildlife there. I didn't know about the bird that was mentioned today. If Exxon hill is flattened out to provide parking, you are going to take out the tree where the Red Tail Hawks go to nest, and I think that Red Tail Hawks are kind of important. The area expresses a great deal of the oil history of this city. I think we are trying to forget that we were built on oil because it is not a pretty business. But, that is where Long Beach had its biggest boom and biggest investments and making things better, it came from oil profits. If this project is not good for El Dorado Park Estates, it is probably not good for Wilmore City.

Dr. Lionel Gatley stated that he drove the area this morning and it is the most desolate and god-forsaken place that has ever been known. Several of the businesses are gone from the site. In the late '70s his son played baseball at El

Dorado Park but, with the increase in population, those facilities are now being used to a great extent. We have church leagues, we also have the expanded population of Long Beach and we simply need more land available. I noticed that in the report it would free up several fields that now have joint use for the youth and adults and I think this project is entirely feasible in that it will be used for recreational purposes. I do have one concern concerning the golf facility. There is a private golf driving range just south of the Willow and Orange, and I don't know if a golf range in this particular facility would be feasible so close to another private driving range. I think that project is entirely feasible. I drove by the gas facility plant and it is abandoned, there is graffiti everywhere with broken windows. If the City owns the property on the Martin Luther King side, I would suggest that they take a bulldozer to those buildings and knock them down right now. As far as the historical value goes, it is very important. However, the trees on the plan should be plenty for the birds.

Bry Myown stated that she walked the area recently. She said that she has extremely poor vision and stopped counting at 20 different species of birds. There were places that she could not hear traffic. She had no idea and she is sure the people who live nearby had no idea that there were 60 acres from which they were fenced off that has been treated as a dump that could have been a park. As you have heard this morning, this is an idea that has been planned for more than 20 years. It was planned for another place that the community rejected. It is true that this idea has been taken out and spoken about in meetings that we are going to drop this project on your community and what do you think. This community has never had an opportunity to plan what it would like this space to be if it were able to choose a park that it did not have to pay to get in. For one of the most underserved parts of the city, to plan a park where they have to pay or where other people would use it does it a great disservice. What would be lost in this plan is exactly what is called lighting constraints on what I think are some of the most meaningful parts of this property. If children on this side of town had a park they could come to, where they could get nature education and where they could get classes, what they would learn here is about values going back to the ranchero and the Tonga period, about water use in the American colony, about the oil and gas and utility history of this city, about what has made this city grow, and most importantly, about bio-remediation hands-on ecology lessons that our oil, gas, water, recreation, and environmental services departments could give them. This is a tremendous active education opportunity and is also an active recreation opportunity. It feels like more than 60 acres because the topography lets you go up and down. You can hike, you can bicycle, you can skate, and you can see almost 360°. I strongly urge you to acquire the property and dedicate it as a park and to please allow the community to rethink its use, because once it is araded, you will have lost the most valuable resource, which is the topography.

Ray Pok stated that he was from the 7<sup>th</sup> District Council office. He wanted to echo what Commissioner Saltzgaver said stated, that Phil Hester has done a tremendous job with this site. The Council Office has made this project our

priority. He stated that this has been a long process and we would like the project to go to the next level. He also stated that public participation is important. As far as the park use, as Dennis Eschen has stated, most of the open space and strategic plan goals of the Recreation Department is covered by this. We identified the need for a self-sustainable program in the recreation area for an adult facility. This is very much needed because the resident per acreage ratio on the west side is so disproportionate, the Parks Department really cannot keep up with the amount of use. We just returfed several parks and you have to take them out of commission and there is some concern about the size of this complex. If you really look at it, it is six fields. We aren't going to have six fields on the West side and often times you have to take a field entirely out of commission just to get it playable for the next season. The plan also calls for increasing the ratio on the west and north sides of town and that is really the population that is going to benefit the most by freeing up the limited parks that we have on that side. It would get the adults off of those fields and get the kids playing where they belong, for free or with a park permit. Additionally, I think one of the most important things is the public participation in the approval process. It is certainly a significant site. Unfortunately, some people refer to it as the Signal Hill site, but it is in the 7<sup>th</sup> District. We had a number of meetings, the scoping meeting was held at Veterans Park in the Wrigley area. That meeting was attending by several people, Don May, Ann Cantrell, as well as representatives of the Tonga Indian tribe. Additionally, the Council office has made an effort to communicate the progress of the project. We recently had Commissioner Saltzgaver on LBTV, which should be airing as it goes to the Planning Commission. For the most part, our frustration has been in the length. Staff has done a very good job extending the circulation more than was required. Also, the question at the previous committee meeting as to why has it been taking so long. That is mostly due to responses to the comments. I just wanted to reiterate the Council member's support. I walked the site with Don May, who has a lot of environmental and resource issues that I think we need to take to the next step. A recreational facility like this is very much needed in the city. We would benefit tremendously on the West side and would like to see the Parks and Recreation Commission allow the Planning Commission to take this to the next step.

Bob Lamond stated that perhaps the gasoline building has some historical significance; he was not familiar with it. The compressor plant is a series of ancient Clark compressors, most of which would be good scrap metal, and one of them might find a place for historic observation. But, the rest of it could be taken out.

Kirsten Autry stated that this is the first time she has seen this and she was not comfortable with having a pay-for-play facility. I think it is a shame. Perhaps if there is already a golf facility located off-site, there should be a major part of it that is free to the public and then pay for the baseball fields.

Commissioner Antenore stated that the bond act of 1992 was for about \$6 million and was designated for the Sports Complex, but was used for Chavez Park instead. I don't know that the money is still available. I would like to know about that. Another thing that troubles me, I would like to know just where all this money is recognized as being available for this project now. I don't see it and I'd like to know where it is all coming from. I'd like to know about the time frame. It doesn't seem to me that with all the things that have to be done, all the money accumulated, all the change of the land, and all the work to be done, that it is going to be feasible for another year or two. I have a lot of questions about this. I appreciate your EIR and I think it is a magnificent job. I am still very questioning.

Mr. Eschen responded that he could take the first question, the 1992 bond act. Both the projects, the Cesar E. Chavez Park and the Sports Park were two specifically identified projects that were listed in the bond issue. They were separately funded and there has been no use of the Sports Park funds. The \$6 million has paid for the EIR, so it is now down to about \$4 million.

Commissioner Antenore asked where all the rest of the money would be coming from.

Mr. Hester responded that per the presentation, once we get through the EIR process, a funding plan has to be put together. There are things that are already in place and the City is also working on trying to find additional revenue sources at the federal and state level.

Commissioner Antenore stated that what troubles her is that we have cut services, we have threats of more cuts, we have libraries cut, we have all these things going through the city because of this deficit, and yet, we are being told that there is going to be \$30 million or \$40 million going into this and I know this would be a revenue source, but it is still troubling me that we are looking at something like this rather than just the open space. And I still think that El Dorado Park would have been the place for this sports complex and I think that people involved gave up too easily and you have people who complain about any site you choose. There will always be people who stand up on hind legs and scream and yell and I think that we understand that. But I think that we gave up much too easily on the El Dorado Park and I think that it is still the only place to put this.

Mr. Hester responded that the City Council made the decision to change the site.

Commissioner Antenore stated I know, only because of a few loudmouths. I was at those meetings and I saw the chairs being thrown. That was just one little group of people in this community, not the community.

Commissioner Chavarria thanked staff and Angela Reynolds. He asked if the official name was the Long Beach Sports Park? Mr. Eschen responded that it is only the working name; there is no official name.

Mr. Hester stated that he wanted to clarify that the golf training center is not an adult oriented facility. It is specifically designed for youth programs. It came from a result of a lot of conversations with City Council members. Also, when the Tiger Woods event came to the city, it became quite obvious that there was a need in the inner city for training opportunities for kids. This is a scaled down facility that kids would use. Part of it would be a classroom situation where kids would come in and do their homework and have homework help. It mimics, to a certain extent, the Tiger Woods facility in Anaheim built by the Tiger Woods Foundation, with the same concepts. It is not a full-size driving range; it is geared for youth. Our Junior Golf Program, which is extremely large and is operated out of Heartwell Golf Course, unfortunately has not reached the total diversity of the city and this is an opportunity to put up a facility adjacent to the central part of the city and really would allow us to reach out to that particular youth population.

Mr. Hester stated that if you remember the facility that was being proposed for El Dorado Park was called an adult sports complex. In this particular case, we are not using that terminology because that is not necessarily the concept. The concept is that all the adult sports programs would be relocated to this facility and it would help free up the facilities in the local neighborhoods. The cost for using the facilities is what the adults are already paying for, through their leagues, and they would be transferred to this facility. Depending on how this is operated, the use by youth is still encouraged, such as for special tournaments, training, clinics, etc. It is not going to be strictly an adult facility. Batting cages by themselves would not necessarily be used by adults, they are going to be used by kids. We also added the skate park facility to encourage kids, because there is no skate park in this part of the city. This is an opportunity adjacent to the 6<sup>th</sup> and 7<sup>th</sup> Council Districts, the west side, and north Long Beach to provide an all-purpose facility to address many issues.

Commissioner Chavarria asked if the City of Signal Hill is involved in this project?

Ms. Bodek responded that Signal Hill borders the site on three sides. The City of Signal Hill is very supportive of this project. They have commented on the EIR. In addition, the City of Long Beach and the City of Signal Hill have something called the joint-powers authority that has focused mostly on Spring Street and Cherry Avenue. They annually receive a presentation on this project and give their support. The City of Signal Hill sees this project as helping their neighborhoods that surround the site increase and be enhanced as well.

Commissioner Satariano stated that he supports the Director's comments and rationale about why we should do it. Also, he was really impressed with all the

staff time and professional time that has gone into the project. He has lived in Long Beach all of his life and as the gentleman commented, it is a god-forsaken piece of ground and I think this is one of the only ways that this piece of ground will be developed. He supports it.

Commissioner George stated that his only comment is the source of funding at this time. This is a well-done job, but mainly it is up to the City Council.

Vice President Saltzgaver stated that it is important to realize the stage that we are at in this process. I have heard concerns about the money, complaints about specific portions of the master plan down to where we are going to put bushes. Where I see this project at right now is an overall use plan and the fact that we are going to do something with this land in the first place. I think we can all agree that we should turn this god-forsaken piece of junk land into a park. The question is, what we do with that land. Twenty years of time has past since we began attempting to build this type of a facility. I think there are some serious misconceptions on what this facility will do. As it has been pointed out, the youth will be able to use this facility. You don't have to pay to go into the facility, in some instances. It may well be that the skate park is a free skate park. It should be a free skate park. But the operations of this land have not been determined yet. There was a big brouhaha about Big League Dreams and how great the new fields would be with Ebbits field and all that. Well, that was one potential plan. Right now, what we are trying to decide is whether this should be an active recreation site. We will get to the part about how we are going to deal with that site as the process continues. The comment that there is no place for the kids in this, it is beyond using this very facility for kids, it is also freeing up those neighborhood parks. I live in the 9<sup>th</sup> District, which is up north. I live near Houghton Park. That park, if it is not the highest used per capita in the city, I would be very surprised. Most of those are adults playing soccer. We have given up returfing those fields. They just play all the time. We need to move those adults off those fields to allow the kids to play. Bea. I don't think we need to worry about where the money is going to come from. A lot of the money is already in place. We have projects throughout the city where we are trying to get things started and trying to find money. You talk about cuts in programs. Of course that upsets me. That is something we need to deal with. The money that is going to be spent on this park is not available to be spent on programs. That is the real key here. Once this is built, if the concept falls through, the operation of this park is actually paid for. That is unusual in this day. We build things and then we try to figure out how to operate them. We have a plan here where we are actually going to have a way to pay for this park, once it is built. I see this as 20 years of hard sweat, blood, and tears. We still have two, three, four more years of that work to be done. But this is the first real, let's get it going, this is what we are going to do, step.

President Kozaites thanked staff and all of the consultants for an outstanding job. In 20 years, what you didn't talk about was the amount of money that the City has expended doing this and we could have been well on our way on this

project a long time ago if it weren't for a couple of small, outspoken minorities. This adds a tremendous benefit to the community. In every project, you need to look at the benefit vs. the burden and right now this property is an extreme burden and it represents an extreme benefit to the youth primarily.

Commissioner Antenore stated that through the years, I have never spoken against this property. I have always spoken for El Dorado. But I have never spoken against the EIR or anything that has been accomplished. I have appreciated all the effort, all the work, all the blood, sweat, and tears that have gone into it. This is the first time that I have actually come out with these statements.

It was moved by Vice President Saltzgaver and seconded by Commissioner Antenore to amend his motion to take the first three items and hold the fourth item in abeyance for a separate motion. The motion carried unanimously.

It was moved by Vice President Saltzgaver and seconded by Commissioner Satariano to recommend to the City Manager, the Planning Commission, and the City Council that:

- <u>The acquisition of the privately owned land at the corner of</u> <u>Spring Street and Orange Avenue is appropriate for a public</u> <u>park and public recreational use;</u>
- <u>The dedication of the publicly owned land in the area bounded</u> by Spring Street, the Municipal and Sunnyside Cemeteries, Orange Avenue and California Avenue is appropriate for a public park and public recreational use; and
- <u>The sale or exchange of public land in the vicinity of Spring</u> <u>Street and California Avenue in exchange for equal or greater</u> <u>land in the vicinity of Spring Street and Orange Avenue is</u> <u>appropriate for enhancing the functional design of the proposed</u> <u>public park and public recreational use.</u>

The motion carried unanimously.

It was moved by Vice President Saltzgaver and seconded by Commissioner Satariano to recommend to the City Manager, the Planning Commission, and the City Council that:

• <u>The approval of the plans for improvement of the subject</u> <u>parkland for the public recreational purposes of a Sports Park</u> <u>and Youth Golf Learning Center as presented.</u> <u>The motion carried with Commissioner Antenore opposed.</u>

Vice President Saltzgaver recommended that the Parks and Recreation Commission have representation at the Planning Commission workshop on August 18. Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting July 21, 2005 Page 24

President Kozaites recommended that someone from the Capital Improvements Committee attend.

## XIII. COMMENTS

## A. AUDIENCE

William Marmion stated that it has been a pleasure being on this side of the aisle. He suggested that the Gold Medal video be played on Cable TV.

Carol McCafferty stated that she is the daughter of a former Commissioner. Her mother served on the Recreation Commission back when there was a separate Parks Commission. You might want to investigate the keys to the City that were given to the Commissioners back then. Her mother's key was put on her charm bracelet. She also mentioned the obituary for Bob Van Antwerp, a former Parks and Recreation Director, who was totally devoted to the parks in Long Beach and the people.

Laura Spino stated that she wanted to talk about the Municipal Band. She went to the budget meeting and she feels that sponsorship is a great idea. She thought that having a winter concert gala to raise money for the Municipal Band would be a good idea. Partners of Parks could be involved as the non-profit organization and then the event would be tax deductible.

Vice President Saltzgaver stated that he endorsed her effort. The ranchos and museums have foundations and it might be an idea to form a separate non-profit to support the band.

## B. STAFF

Ms. Diane Lewis distributed flyers for an adobe history event for the family at the Rancho Los Cerritos in August.

## C. COMMISSIONERS

Commissioner Chavarria stated that the Gold Medal video was excellent. He thanked staff, Tom Shippey, Anna Mendiola, and Dennis Eschen for working on the Burton W. Chase Park issues.

Commissioner Chavarria suggested a letter be sent to the North Long Beach Redevelopment Agency Project Area Committee thanking them for recommending funding to add a parcel to Admiral Kidd Park and to improve the center.

Commissioner Chavarria also thanked Commissioner Satariano for his work on the Sea Festival.

Commissioner Chavarria distributed flyers for the Path Festival event at Recreation Park.

Commissioner Satariano stated that last month they had their second annual inductions to the Baseball and Softball Halls of Fame and thanked Chrissy Marshall, Marc Gutfeld, and their staff for their work on the event. They arranged for a top-notch presentation.

## XIV. <u>NEXT MEETING</u>

The next meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, August 18, 2005, at the El Dorado Park West Community Center, in the Senior Center Library, 2800 Studebaker Rd., Long Beach.

## XV. ADJOURNMENT

President Kozaites adjourned the meeting at 11:45 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Place

Robin Black Executive Secretary to the Director

c: Phil T. Hester, Director of Parks, Recreation and Marine

## MINUTES REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS LONG BEACH, CALIFORNIA AUGUST 11, 2005

The Board of Water Commissioners of the City of Long Beach met in the Board Room of the Administration Building, 1800 E. Wardlow Road, Long Beach, California, on August 11, 2005.

The meeting was called to order at 9:15 a.m. by Vice-President Conley

PRESENT: Helen Z. Hansen Stephen T. Conley Frank Clarke William B. Townsend Donna F. Gwin Robert C. Cheng Lynnette L. French

> Ryan J. Alsop Kenneth A. Walker Matthew P. Lyons Paul T. Fujita K. Eric Leung Isaac C. Pai Robert Villanueva Tai J. Tseng Cynthia Andrews-Tate Margaret E. Brooks Claudia A. Lewis Reymundo Trejo Melissa L. Keyes Juan F. Garza Scott E. Godfrey

Commissioner Commissioner Commissioner Commissioner Senior Deputy City Attorney **Acting General Manager** Secretary to the Board of Water Commissioners Manager, Government & Public Affairs Manager, Administration Manager, Planning/Water Conservation **Director** of Finance Manager, Water Resources **Director of Engineering Division Engineer** Water Treatment Superintendent Laboratory Services Supervisor Laboratory Analyst II Administrative Analyst III **Civil Engineer** Administrative Projects Coordinator Administrative Analyst I Intern/Water Conservation Program

ABSENT: Kevin Wattier

General Manager (Excused)

## PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Robert Cheng, Acting General Manager, led the Board and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.

## **APPROVAL OF MINUTES**

It was moved by Commissioner Clarke and seconded by Commissioner Townsend that the Board approve the minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 28, 2005.

The motion was carried by the following vote:

AYES:	COMMISSIONERS:	STEPHEN CONLEY, FRANK CLARKE,
		WILLIAM TOWNSEND
NOES:	COMMISSIONERS:	NONE
ABSENT:	COMMISSIONERS:	HELEN HANSEN
ABSTAIN:	COMMISSIONERS:	NONE

#### 3. PUBLIC COMMENT

Vice President Conley opened the public comment period. As there were no requests to address the Board, the public comment period was closed.

Please Note: The following Minutes reflect the order in which items on the agenda were addressed by the Board.

## 6. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

Robert C. Cheng, Acting General Manager

Appointment of New Civil Service Commissioner

Dr. Cheng reported that Jeanne Karatsu has been appointed to the City's Civil Service Commission. A reception was held on Wednesday, August 10<sup>th</sup>, to welcome her.

## 7. LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT

Donna F. Gwin, Senior Deputy City Attorney

No report was given.

Arrival of Commissioner: Commissioner Hansen arrived at 9:20 a.m.

#### 8. CONSENT CALENDAR

## 8a. Approval of Transfer of Funds by Journal Entry Dated August 11, 2005

Transfers No. 231 through No. 240 in the total amount of \$168,890.97 covering the Water and Sewer Revenue Funds, were submitted to the Board for approval.

## 8b. Request Authorization to Attend the International Desalination Association World Congress on Desalination and Water ReUse September 11-16, 2005

A communication was presented to the Board from Robert Cheng which is on file at the Long Beach Water Department.

Action Requested:

• That the Board authorize K. Eric Leung, Manager, Water Resources, and Tai J. Tseng, Treatment Plant Superintendent, to attend the International Desalination Association World Congress on Desalination and Water Reuse at the Swissotel, Singapore, September 11 to 16, 2005, with their necessary and actual expenses to be paid by the Water Department.

This conference will focus on developments in desalination technologies featuring speakers who are experts in their fields. The setting will allow the Long Beach Water Department (LBWD) staff to keep current on world-wide developments in desalination. Funds for the conference are included in the Fiscal Year 2004-2005 annual budget.

8c. Request Authorization for the General Manager to Execute First Amendments to Agreement No. WD-2661 with Badger Meter, Inc., and Agreement No. WD-2662 with Neptune Technology Group, Inc., to Extend the Contracts for One Year

A communication was presented to the Board from Robert Cheng which is on file at the Long Beach Water Department.

Action Requested:

• That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute First Amendments to Agreement No. WD-2661 with Badger Meter, Inc., and Agreement No. WD-2662 with Neptune Technology Group, Inc., to extend the contracts for one year.

The total cost of the amended agreements will be \$456,145.41 and the funds are included in the Fiscal Year 2005-2006 annual budget (Water Fund).

## 8d. Request Authorization for the General Manager to Execute a Second Amendment to Agreement No. WD-2601 with Backflow Apparatus & Valve Company to Extend the Term for One Year

A communication was presented to the Board from Robert Cheng which is on file at the Long Beach Water Department.

Action Requested:

• That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a Second Amendment to Agreement No. WD-2601 with Backflow Apparatus & Valve Company to extend the term for one year at the current price in an amount not to exceed \$189,000 annually.

The funds for the amended contract are included in the Fiscal Year 2005-2006 annual budget (Water Fund).

8e. Request Authorization for the General Manager to Execute a Second Amendment to Agreement No. WD-2603 with David Gomes Enterprises, LLD, dba A to Z Metals, to Extend the Term for One Year

A communication was presented to the Board from Robert Cheng which is on file at the Long Beach Water Department.

Action Requested:

• That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a Second Amendment to Agreement No. WD-2603 with David Gomes Enterprises, LLC, dba A to Z Metals at the current prices.

Funds for the contract extension are included in the FY 2005-2006 annual budget (Water Fund).

## 8f. Request Authorization for the General Manager to Execute an Agreement with Agilent Technologies for the Purchase of an Inductively Coupled Plasma-Mass Spectrometer

At the request of President Hansen, this item was removed for separate discussion and action.

## Board Action - Consent Calendar Items 8a-8e

It was moved by Commissioner Townsend and seconded by Commissioner Clarke that the Board approve Consent Calendar items 8a-8e. The motion was carried by the following vote:

AYES:	COMMISSIONERS:	HELEN HANSEN, STEPHEN CONLEY,
		FRANK CLARKE, WILLIAM TOWNSEND
NOES:	COMMISSIONERS:	NONE
ABSENT:	COMMISSIONERS:	NONE
ABSTAIN:	COMMISSIONERS:	NONE

## 8f. Request Authorization for the General Manager to Execute an Agreement with Agilent Technologies for the Purchase of an Inductively Coupled Plasma-Mass Spectrometer

A communication was presented to the Board from Robert Cheng which is on file at the Long Beach Water Department.

#### Action Requested:

That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an Agreement with Agilent Technologies in an amount not to exceed \$162,221.50 for the purchase of an Inductively Coupled Plasma-Mass Spectrometer. Funds for the purchase are included in the Fiscal Year 2004-2005 annual budget (Water Fund).

## **Executive Summary:**

Cynthia Andrews-Tate, Laboratory Services Supervisor, provided an overview of this new technology. She explained that the Inductively Coupled Plasma-Mass Spectrometer is capable of providing an analytical technique for analyses of metals and minerals at very low levels of detection. It will assist the Long Beach Water Department (LBWD) in meeting ever more stringent United States Environmental Protection Agency regulations and resolve interference for difficult elements. It will also enable the Water Department to conduct sophisticated water quality testing in-house rather than having to rely on contract labs which will reduce costs and turn-around time for water quality analysis.

#### **Board Action:**

It was moved by Commissioner Conley and seconded by Commissioner Clarke that the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an Agreement with Agilent Technologies in an amount not to exceed \$162,221.50 for the purchase of an Inductively Coupled Plasma-Mass Spectrometer. The motion was carried by the following vote:

AYES:	COMMISSIONERS:	STEPHEN CONLEY, FRANK CLARKE,
		WILLIAM TOWNSEND
NOES:	COMMISSIONERS:	NONE
ABSENT:	COMMISSIONERS:	NONE
ABSTAIN:	COMMISSIONERS:	HELEN HANSEN

## 4. PRESIDENT'S REPORT

## • Helen Z. Hansen, President, Board of Water Commissioners

## Port of Long Beach

On Monday, August 8<sup>th</sup>, President Hansen reported that she and Commissioner Steve Conley met with Harbor Commissioner Doris Topsy-Elvord and Harbor Commissioner C.J. Mike Walter along with staff representatives from the Water and Harbor Departments. The purpose of the meeting was to discuss collaborative efforts on items of mutual interest to the Long Beach Water Department (LBWD) and the Port of Long Beach.

## **City Council Budget Briefings**

Commissioner Conley reported that the Water Department is continuing a series of individual budget briefings with the Mayor and City Council. The meetings are focusing on a preview of the Water Department's proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2005-2006 and various Capital Improvement Projects throughout the City. Commissioner Conley added City Officials have expressed their support for these types of informational briefings.

## Seawater Desalination

President Hansen announced that the Grand Opening of the LBWD's seawater desalination prototype facility is planned on Friday, September 30<sup>th</sup>, at 10:00 a.m. The Board will be kept informed as plans for the event progress.

## Colorado River Inspection Tour

President Hansen announced that the next Colorado River Inspection Tour, sponsored by the Metropolitan Water District, is planned for May 5-7, 2006, and she asked the Board to save the date. She also requested that the Board submit the names of their guests to the Board Secretary as early as possible.

## 5. METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT (MWD) AGENDA ITEMS AND RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE AUGUST 16, 2005, BOARD MEETING

## Helen Z. Hansen, MWD Director

In her capacity as the City of Long Beach MWD Director, President Hansen called the Board's attention to the MWD agenda for the Board of Directors' meeting on August 16, 2005. She requested input from the Board and stated that she will report back during the Water Commission meeting on August 18, 2005.

9. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION FOR THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH CHANDLER'S SAND AND GRAVEL (LLC) TO PROVIDE A LANDFILL SITE TO DUMP CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL

## Robert C. Cheng, Acting General Manager

#### Action Requested:

That the Board authorize the General Manager to enter into a contract with Chandler's Sand and Gravel LLC (Chandler's) in an amount not to exceed \$215,000, with an option to extend the term for two additional one-year periods if Chandler's sole source status does not change.

## **Executive Summary:**

Claudia Lewis, Administrative Analyst III, explained that the LBWD requires a landfill site that will accept certain types of construction materials and is located within a fifteen mile radius from the City of Long Beach. The staff has researched a number of options and has determined that Chandler's is the only company that meets these requirements.

The cost of the contract has been included in the Fiscal Year 2005-2006 annual budget (Water Fund).

#### Board Action:

It was moved by Commissioner Clarke and seconded by Commissioner Conley that the Board authorize the General Manager to enter into a contract with Chandler's Sand and Gravel LLC (Chandler's) in an amount not to exceed \$215,000, with an option to extend the term for two additional one-year periods if Chandler's sole source status does not change.

The motion was carried by the following vote:

AYES:	COMMISSIONERS:	HELEN HANSEN, STEPHEN CONLEY,
		FRANK CLARKE, WILLIAM TOWNSEND
NOES:	COMMISSIONERS:	NONE
ABSENT:	COMMISSIONERS:	NONE
ABSTAIN:	COMMISSIONERS:	NONE

## 10. HUMAN RESOURCES QUARTERLY UPDATE

Kenneth A. Walker, Manager, Administration

Mr. Walker began his presentation with a review of the LBWD's current staffing levels and work force composition by age, ethnicity, and gender. He highlighted various training sessions conducted in the Department which address issues such as safety, professional certification, supervisory training, administrative policies, and personal and professional growth. He described the changes in various divisions and explained that the Department is carefully reviewing the projected staffing levels for Fiscal Year 2005-2006.

## 11. LEGISLATIVE ISSUES/ACTIONS/BILLS

## Ryan J. Alsop, Manager, Government and Public Affairs

Mr. Alsop reported that both the State Legislature and U.S. Congress are on summer recess.

## State Legislative Advisor

Mr. Alsop introduced Michael J. Arnold of Arnold & Associates, who serves as the Water Department's Legislative Advisor in Sacramento. Mr. Arnold stated that it is a privilege to serve the Water Department and that Long Beach is seen as a leader in the water industry. He explained that after the State Legislature returns in September, he and his staff will monitor the progress of important water-related legislation with particular attention to AB 371 (Goldberg), Water Recycling; AB 1168 (Saldana), Safe Desalinated Water; and SB 820 (Kuehl), Water. He added that the Board will be kept informed and that he looks forward to his continuing role as State Legislative Advisor to the Water Department.

## 12. NEW BUSINESS

## Inspection Tour of the San Gabriel River Water System

Commissioner Townsend stated that he found the August 4<sup>th</sup> inspection tour of the San Gabriel River water conservation system of great interest. This was reiterated by all of the Board and a brief discussion ensued about their interest in the complex issues which accompany water conservation and the preservation of storm run-off waters.

## 13. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Board, it was moved by Commissioner Townsend, seconded by Commissioner Clarke, and unanimously carried, that the meeting be adjourned at 10:50 a.m. to the next Regular Meeting of the Water Commission to be held on Thursday, August 18, 2005, at 9:15 a.m., in the Board Room of the Administration Building, 1800 E. Wardlow, in Long Beach, California.

larke

Frank Clarke, Secretary

Attest:

Hadsen, President

## MINUTES REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS LONG BEACH, CALIFORNIA AUGUST 18, 2005

The Board of Water Commissioners of the City of Long Beach met in the Board Room of the Administration Building, 1800 E. Wardlow Road, Long Beach, California, on August 18, 2005. The meeting was called to order at 9:15 a.m. by President Hansen.

PRESENT: Helen Z. Hansen Stephen T. Conley Frank Clarke William B. Townsend Donna F. Gwin Kevin L. Wattier Lynnette L. French

> Robert C. Cheng Ryan J. Alsop Kenneth A. Walker Paul T. Fujita K. Eric Leung Isaac C. Pai Robert G. Berg

Robert Villanueva Robert V. Swain Reymundo Trejo Juan F. Garza Melissa L. Keyes Carolyn A. Hill Commissioner Commissioner Commissioner Commissioner Senior Deputy City Attorney General Manager Secretary to the Board of Water Commissioners **Director of Operations** Manager, Government & Public Affairs Manager, Administration Director of Finance Manager, Water Resources **Director of Engineering** Manager, Security/Emergency Preparedness **Division Engineer Division Engineer Civil Engineer** Administrative Analyst I Administrative Projects Coordinator Senior Secretary

ABSENT: None

## 1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

E. Del Smith, the Long Beach Water Department's (LBWD) Federal Legislative Advocate, led the Board and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.

## 2. PUBLIC COMMENT

President Hansen opened the public comment period. As there were no requests to address the Board, the public comment period was closed.

# Please Note: The following Minutes reflect the order in which items on the agenda were addressed by the Board.

## LEGISLATIVE ISSUES/ACTIONS/BILLS

## • Ryan J. Alsop, Manager, Government & Public Affairs

## Beautiful Long Beach

Mr. Alsop reported that the 21<sup>st</sup> Annual California Coastal Cleanup Day is planned for Saturday, September 17<sup>th</sup>. The event is a statewide beach cleanup day sponsored by the California Coastal Commission with local sponsorship and support from the Long Beach Department of Parks, Recreation, and Marine. The LBWD is proud to be a cosponsor of this year's event and will be assigned to Bluff Park. Mr. Alsop invited the Board and the audience to participate.

## Seawater Desalination

Mr. Alsop stated that in Fiscal Year (FY) 2006, federal appropriations measures with regards to seawater desalination are focused on funding for research and development. President Bush signed a sweeping \$14.5 billion energy bill into law on August 8<sup>th</sup> which includes \$30 million to address water-related issues.

## Federal Legislative Update

Mr. Smith provided a brief overview of the projects that his firm, Smith, Esposito, and Lyerly, has worked on with the LBWD. He noted that cooperative efforts have resulted in \$6 million in federal funding for the LBWD's reclaimed water system expansion program and \$5.25 million for seawater desalination. He reported that it is a privilege to work with the LBWD and that he looks forward to future efforts.

## 12. CLOSED SESSION: PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION Section 54954.5 of the Government Code Titles: General Manager, Deputy General Manager, and Director of Operations

The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 9:45 a.m. pursuant to Government Code 54954.5. The Board reconvened to Open Session at 10:30 a.m. President Hansen reported that no action was taken.

## 3. PRESIDENT'S REPORT

Helen Z. Hansen, President, Board of Water Commissioners

## LBWD Budget Briefings with the Mayor and City Council

Commissioner Conley reported that on August 16th, the Water Department completed a series of individual budget briefings with the Mayor and City Council. The

meetings were well received and provided an opportunity for the Water Department to preview its FY 2005-2006 annual budget on an individual basis with City Officials.

## 4. REPORT OF THE METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT (MWD) BOARD MEETING ON AUGUST 16, 2005

## • Helen Z. Hansen, MWD Director

President Hansen, in her capacity as the City of Long Beach MWD Director, provided the following report of the MWD Board of Directors' meeting on August 16, 2005:

#### Tax Levy

The Board heard a report of certified assessed valuations for Fiscal Year 2005-2006 which included a tabulation of assessed valuations, percentage participation, and vote entitlement of member public agencies as of August 16, 2005. Metropolitan uses a weighted voting system and each member agency is entitled to one vote for every \$10 million of assessed valuation of property taxable for MWD purposes. President Hansen distributed a chart compiled by General Manager Kevin Wattier illustrating the comparative voting strength of Metropolitan's member agencies.

In a related action, the MWD Board adopted a resolution to establish the tax rate for Fiscal Year 2005-2006. The tax rate computation is based upon the assessed valuations of property taxable by Metropolitan as certified by the auditors of the six counties in Metropolitan's service area. This year's rate was reduced to .0052 of assessed valuations, 10% lower than Fiscal Year 2004-2005.

## **City Makeover Projects**

The Board authorized up to \$950,000 over two years for the revised 2005-2006 City Makeover Program, including an independent audit component to verify water savings.

President Hansen stated she was pleased to announce that the City of Long Beach Aquarium of the Pacific has been selected to receive up to \$75,000 as a signature project for a Watershed Public Education Garden. Projects in this category include high-visibility, public landscapes featuring native and California-Friendly plants and state-of-the-art irrigation including an exceptionally strong community involvement and education component.

## Water Conservation

The Board accepted \$3.2 million in state grants for four water conservation projects, including the residential High-Efficiency Clothes Washers (HECW) incentive program, residential High-Efficiency Toilet (HET) incentive program; the California-Friendly Model Home program, and the Protector del Agua program.

#### Seawater Desalination

The Board received a report that provided a Review of Options for Metropolitan's role in seawater desalination. The first option would continue current incentive contracts with member agencies. The second option calls for development of a regional project by Metropolitan, which would study, design, build, and operate a seawater desalination plant, using a capital project approach to developing the resource. Under the third option, Metropolitan would use partnerships to develop seawater desalination. Partnerships could take many forms – either completely public, private, or a combination of both.

#### Water Treatment Power Upgrades

The Board appropriated \$980,000 and authorized four power system rehabilitation projects that will protect the Weymouth, Mills, and Diemer water treatment plants from power outages.

#### Repair Projects

The Board appropriated \$3 million for projects costing less than \$250,000 for FY 2005-2006 under the Minor Capital Projects Program, primarily for necessary repairs or upgrades to items such as pumps, valves, structural components, plumbing, electrical equipment or heating/ventilation/air conditioning systems, often in situations that require a quick response.

#### **Diamond Valley Lake**

The Board authorized an agreement for \$300,000 with RBF Consulting for the design of Searl Parkway landscaping and signage and a \$2 million increase to an existing agreement with Pinnacle One for project management support for the Diamond Valley Lake East Recreation Area.

## 5. REVIEW BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE FOR SEPTEMBER 2005

## Helen Z. Hansen, President, Board of Water Commissioners

The Board discussed the schedule of Board meetings during the month of September, and after the discussion, agreed to the following meeting schedule for the month of September:

Thursday, September 1 <sup>st</sup>	9:15 a.m. Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, September 8 <sup>th</sup>	9:15 a.m. Committee of the Whole
Thursday, September 15 <sup>th</sup>	9:15 a.m. Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, September 22 <sup>nd</sup>	9:15 a.m. Committee of the Whole
Thursday, September 29 <sup>th</sup>	9:15 a.m. Committee of the Whole

## GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT • Kevin L. Wattier, General Manager

#### Aquarium of the Pacific (AOP)

Mr. Wattier commended the AOP for its successful effort to secure a City Makeover Grant from the MWD for its Watershed Project. He noted that AOP officials will be invited to brief the Water Commission on the project which will include exhibits depicting the native plants and animals found in the San Gabriel and Los Angeles Rivers as well as the history of the region.

## Visit by Congressman

On Monday, August 15<sup>th</sup>, the LBWD provided a tour of its prototype seawater desalination project for Congressman Devin Nunes who serves on the Ways and Means Committee. After the tour, a reception was held for the Congressman at MWD headquarters and each of the five member agencies, including the LBWD, that have entered desalination contracts with the MWD was invited to make a brief presentation about their projects.

#### LBWD Fiscal Year 2005-2006 Annual Budget

Mr. Wattier previewed the Water Department's FY 06 budget presentation to the Mayor and City Council. He explained the expenditures and revenues in both the Water and Sewer funds and provided charts offering comparison of Long Beach water and sewer rates with other California cities. Major initiatives next year will include the seawater desalination research facility; the conjunctive use/groundwater storage project; the reclaimed water system expansion program; and water conservation efforts.

Departure of Commissioner: Commissioner Townsend left the meeting at 10:55 a.m.

7. LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT

• Donna F. Gwin, Senior Deputy City Attorney

No report was given.

#### CONSENT CALENDAR

## 8a. Approval of Transfer of Funds by Journal Entry Dated August 18, 2005

Transfers No. 241 through No. 244 in the total amount of \$8,317.00 covering the Water and Sewer Revenue Funds, were submitted to the Board for approval.

## 8b. Request Authorization to Attend the International City Theatre's (ICT) 20<sup>th</sup> Anniversary Celebration on Saturday, October 29, 2005

A communication was presented to the Board from Kevin Wattier which is on file at the Long Beach Water Department.

## Action Requested.

 That the Board determine that an invitation to participate in a Featured Role in the ICT's 20<sup>th</sup> Anniversary Celebration on Saturday, October 29, 2005, at the Long Beach Convention Center in the amount of \$2,100, complies with Board Policy Statement 1998-31, Expenditure of Water Department Funds for Board Approved Long Beach Related Community and Civic Activities.

Mayor O'Neill will be honored for her service to the Long Beach community and her Presidency of the United States Conference of Mayors. Funds for Long Beach related community activities are included in the FY 2005-2006 annual budget.

## 8c. Request Authorization to Support the Nomination of Las Virgenes Municipal Water District Director Glen Peterson as the Vice President of the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA)

A communication was presented to the Board from Kevin Wattier which is on file at the Long Beach Water Department.

## Action Requested:

- That the Board authorize support for the nomination of Las Virgenes Municipal Water District Director Glen Peterson as the Vice President of the ACWA.
- 8d. Request Authorization for the General Manager to Execute the Second Amendment to Agreement No. WD-2530 by and between the Long Beach Water Department, the Metropolitan Water District, and the Central Basin Municipal Water District

A communication was presented to the Board from Eric Leung which is on file at the Long Beach Water Department.

#### Action Requested:

• That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a Second Amendment to Agreement No. WD-2530 by and between the Long Beach Water Department, the Metropolitan Water District, and the Central Basin Municipal Water District, allowing an annual increase to the administrative fee paid to Long Beach and to allow the Central Basin Municipal Water District to be amended out of the agreement per their request.

There is no fiscal impact to the LBWD resulting from the amended contract.

8e. Request Authorization for the General Manager to Execute a Second Amendment to Agreement No. WD-2599 with Chan H. Yang, dba Bell Building Maintenance Company, to Provide Janitorial Services

A communication was presented to the Board from Robert Cheng which is on file at the Long Beach Water Department.

Action Requested:

• That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a Second Amendment to Agreement No. WD-2599 with Bell Building Maintenance Company to extend the contract for one year at an amount not to exceed \$109,596.61.

Funds for the contract are included in the Fiscal Year 2005-2006 annual budget (Water Fund).

8f. Request Authorization for the General Manager to Sign an Agreement with Hall & Foreman, Inc., to Provide Engineering Design Services for the Alley Service Connection Conversion Project

A communication was presented to the Board from Isaac Pai which is on file at the Long Beach Water Department.

#### Action Requested:

• That the Board authorize the General Manager to sign an Agreement with Hall & Foreman, Inc., to provide Engineering Design Services for the Alley Service Connection Conversion

Project in an amount not to exceed \$145,734, for a period ending December 31, 2006.

Funds for the contract are included in the Fiscal Year 2005-2006 budget (Capital Improvement Program).

8g. Request Authorization for the General Manager to Sign an Agreement with Daniel Boyle Engineering, Inc., to Provide Engineering Design Services for the LBWD Groundwater Treatment Plant Security Enhancement Project

A communication was presented to the Board from Isaac Pai which is on file at the Long Beach Water Department.

## Action Requested:

• That the Board authorize the General Manager to sign an Agreement with Daniel Boyle Engineering, Inc., to provide Engineering Design Services for the LBWD Groundwater Treatment Plant Security Enhancement Project in an amount not to exceed \$109,911 for a period ending July 31, 2006.

Funds are included in the Fiscal Year 2005-2006 annual budget (Capital Improvement Program).

8h. Adopt Specifications WD-08-05 for the Magnolia Trunk Sewer and S-25 Sewer Life Station Modifications Project and Request Authorization for the General Manager to Sign a Construction Contract with Steve Bubalo Construction, Inc.

Agenda Item 8h was withdrawn from the Consent Calendar.

Board Action Agenda Items 8a-8g

It was moved by Commissioner Conley and seconded by Commissioner Clarke that the Board approve Consent Calendar items 8a-8g. The motion was carried by the following vote:

AYES:	COMMISSIONERS:	HELEN HANSEN, STEPHEN CONLEY,
		FRANK CLARKE
NOES:	COMMISSIONERS:	NONE
ABSENT:	COMMISSIONERS:	WILLIAM TOWNSEND
ABSTAIN:	COMMISSIONERS:	NONE

## 10. STAFF REPORT ON THE RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM

- K. Eric Leung, Manager, Water Resources
- Paul T. Fujita, Director of Finance

Mr. Leung introduced his presentation with an overview of the reclaimed water system expansion program. He explained that the future recycled water system expansion project is being developed in four critical and deliberate phases (Phases 2, 3, 4A and 4B) and is primarily intended to connect the recycled water system to new customers and increase the reliability of the distribution system through the completion of looped transmission corridors. The LBWD submitted Prop 50 applications for all four phases and Phases 2 and 3 have been accepted and placed on the priority list.

Phase 2 of the project will serve, among other customers, two large power generation facilities in the southeast part of the City, operated by the Los Angeles Department of Water & Power and AES Southland Company. Phase 2 will cost approximately \$9.5 million. Less State and Federal grants, the cost to the LBWD will be approximately \$5 million. With projected demands of nearly 900 acre-feet per year, the pay back for this project is about 20 years. Staff will proceed with the design and construction of this phase aiming to complete it within 3 years.

Mr. Leung discussed the projected reclaimed water demand needed for Phase 3 expansion and explained it will not be realized in the near future. Even with the assistance of Federal and State grants, Phase 3 is not economically feasible at this time and staff will postpone its initiation.

## 11. NEW BUSINESS

## Excused Absence: Commissioner Conley

It was moved by Commissioner Clarke and seconded by Commissioner Conley that Commissioner Conley be excused from the Regular Board Meeting of September 1, 2005. The motion was carried by the following vote:

AYES:	COMMISSIONERS:	HELEN HANSEN, STEPHEN CONLEY,
		FRANK CLARKE
NOES:	COMMISSIONERS:	NONE
ABSENT:	COMMISSIONERS:	WILLIAM TOWNSEND
ABSTAIN:	COMMISSIONERS:	NONE

#### Conflict of Interest

The Board agreed to seek an opinion from the City Attorney regarding Conflict of Interest procedures.

## 13. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Board, it was moved by Commissioner Clarke, seconded by Commissioner Conley, and unanimously carried, that the meeting be adjourned at 11:30 a.m. to the next Regular Meeting of the Water Commission to be held on Thursday, September 1, 2005, at 9:15 a.m., in the Board Room of the Administration Building, 1800 E. Wardlow, in Long Beach, California.

lanks

Frank Clarke, Secretary

Attest:

Hansen, President